
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street 
Monday, June 25, 2012 

I. Moment of Silence 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
III. Approval of Minutes of the June 11, 2012 City Council Meeting  
 
IV. Approval of Agenda of the June 25, 2012 City Council Meeting 
 
 V.        Public Comment 
             *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 
VI.       Recognition of Retiring Public Safety Sergeant James H. Sutton 
             Presenter: Mayor Junie White   
 
VII.      Public Hearing 
 
             A. An Ordinance Accepting the Property Owned by Kathy Brittain Wright, and 
 Being Located on 675 Perrin Drive, and that Portion of Perrin Drive Abutting 
 Said Property, and is Further Identified on Spartanburg County Tax Map as 7-
 10-09, 067.00, as a Part and Parcel of the City of Spartanburg and Declaring Said 
 Property Annexed to and a Part and Parcel of the City of Spartanburg, Said 
 Parcel to be Zoned R-15, Single Family Residential District upon Annexation 
 (First Reading) 
                       Presenter:  Joshua Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
 
VIII.    Resolution 
 
             A. To Approve the Donation of the City of Spartanburg’s Public Safety 
 Department’s Depreciated Fire Pumper Truck to the Spartanburg County 
 Emergency Services Academy 
         Presenter:  Marion Blackwell, Fire Chief 
 
IX.       Other Business 
 
             A. Briefing on Proposed West Main Street Project 
                        Presenter:  Tim Carter, Engineering Administrator 
 
             B. Award of Bid for Ribault Street Culvert Improvement 
   Presenter:  Jay Squires, Stormwater Manager 
 

  

 
 
 

Meetings. Requests must be made to the Communications & Marketing Office (596-2020) 24 hours in advance of the meeting. This is a Public 
Meeting and notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. 

 

As required by the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Spartanburg will provide interpretive services for the City Council 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 X.      City Council Updates 
 
XI.      Executive Session 

 
A.   To Discuss Personnel Matters Relating to Compensation of Appointed Officials  

 
XII.     Adjournment 
 

* City Code Sec. 2-57. Citizen Appearance. Any citizen of the City of  Spartanburg may speak at a regular meeting on any matter 
pertaining to City Services and operations germane to items within the purview and authority of City Council, except personnel 
matters, by signing a Citizen’s Appearance form prior to the meeting stating the subject and purpose for speaking. No item 
considered by Council within the past twelve (12) months may be added as an agenda item other than by decision of City Council. 
The forms may be obtained from the Clerk and maintained by the same. Each person who gives notice may speak at the designated 
time and will be limited to a two (2) minute presentation. 

  

 
City Council Agenda 

Page Two – June 25, 2012 



          
III.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



 
 
 

City Council Meeting  
City Council Chambers 
145 West Broad Street 
Monday, June 11, 2012 

 
(These minutes are subject to approval at the 

June 25, 2012 City Council meeting.) 
 

City Council met this date with the following members present: Mayor Junie White, Mayor pro 
tem Cate Ryba, Councilmembers Linda Dogan, Jan Scalisi, W. Sterling Anderson II, Robert 
Reeder, and Jerome Rice. City Manager Ed Memmott and City Attorney Cathy McCabe were 
also in attendance. Notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance 
according to the Freedom of Information Act. All City Council meetings are recorded for a 
complete transcript. 
 
I. Moment of Silence – observed. 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance – recited. 
 
III. Approval of Minutes of the May 29, 2012 City Council Meeting – 
  Councilmember Dogan made a motion to approve the minutes as received.     
  Councilmember Scalisi  seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0.  
 
IV. Approval of Agenda of the June 11, 2012 City Council Meeting –  
  Councilmember Reeder made a motion to approve the agenda as received. Councilmember 
  Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
 V.        Public Comment – none. 
             *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 
 
VI.       Ordinance 
             A. Adopting the Operating Budget for Fiscal Year July 1, 2012 – June 30, 2013 
 (Second Reading) 
                       Presenter:  James Kennedy, Budget and Accounting Director 
                       Mr. Kennedy presented the item to City Council as follows: 
  “In accordance with Section 2-119 of the Code of the City Spartanburg 1988 the City 
  is required to adopt an annual balanced budget.  The City Council held budget  
  workshops on February 13, 27, March 5, 19, April 2 and the budget was presented on 
  May 14, 2012.  During that time, discussions were held concerning the Capital and 
  Facility needs, the General Fund, and Parks & Recreation capital needs.   The  
  recommended FY13 budget is reflective of management’s efforts to meet long term 
  funding obligations (pension plan, building facilities), maintain the city’s solid  
  financial position, and adequately fund critical programs and services.   Council gave 

 1  



  first reading approval of the recommended FY13 budget on May 29.  Staff is not  
  recommending any changes to the budget passed on first reading.    
  Staff is requesting second reading approval of an Ordinance to approve the operating 
  budget for fiscal year July 1, 2012 – June 30, 2013.” 
  Councilmember Reeder made a motion to approve the budget as presented on  
  second reading. Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion. Motion carried 5 to 2. 
  Mayor  White, Mayor pro tem Ryba, Councilmembers Anderson, Scalisi, and Reeder 
  voted in favor of the motion. Councilmembers Rice and Dogan voted against the  
  motion. Councilmembers Rice and Dogan objected to the $100,000 employee  
  incentive bonus portion of the budget. 
                           
             B. Adopting the Millage for Fiscal Year July 1, 2012 – June 30, 2013 (Second 
 Reading) 
                       Presenter:  James Kennedy, Budget and Accounting Director 
         Councilmember Dogan made a motion to approve the ordinance as presented on 
 second reading. Councilmember Anderson seconded the motion, which carried 
 unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
VII.     Other Business 
  A. Award of Banking Agreement 
                        Presenter: Dennis Locke, Finance Director 
  Mr. Locke presented the item to City Council as follows: 
  “Our current banking agreement will expire on June 30th. As recommended by GFOA 
  best practices, municipalities should prepare a request for proposal (RFP) on a  
  periodic basis. Our current agreement has been for five years with Wachovia/Wells 
  Fargo.  In March of this year we sent proposal to all banks within our municipality. 
  We received responses from Wells Fargo, First Citizens, BB&T, SunTrust, TD Bank 
  and Bank of America. The Committee, which included James Kennedy, Donnita  
  Harris, Accounting Manager, Kris Johnson, Staff Accountant and I, thoroughly  
  reviewed all proposals. 
  The selection criteria was responsiveness and ability to provide services and reports 
  required, banking services costs and earnings potential, creditworthiness and stability 
  of bank, experience, references, and continuity of bank and bank officials and  
  community involvement. After reviewing the proposals staff recommends Wells  
  Fargo. 
  Staff requests that Council authorize the City Manager to sign a contract with Wells 
  Fargo to provide banking services to the City. This is a four year contract and includes 
  a one year extension.  
  BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA: The annualized fee is estimated at $14,040 but can 
  be offset with compensating balances that will fluctuate depending on our monthly 
  activity and the earning credit rate which is subject to change over the term of our  
  contract.” 
                        Councilmember Dogan made a motion to approve the request as presented. Mayor 
  pro tem Ryba seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
VIII.   City Council Updates  
            Mayor pro tem Ryba commended the Communications and Marketing staff for the new  
            videos promoting the City and events taking place.  

 2  



             Councilmember Rice commended staff involved in the City’s summer youth programs. He  
             commented that his own children were involved in them. 
             Councilmember Scalisi gave a “shout out” to Communications and Marketing staff for         
             using You Tube, Facebook, and Twitter to promote the City. 
             Councilmember Anderson stated his desire for Council to continue to promote a more  
             walkable, bicycle, and pedestrian friendly community. 
             Councilmember Reeder stated that the Forest Park Neighborhood had celebrated the  
             street name change to Lawrence Johnson, Sr. Lane and the opening of three homes    
             in the neighborhood with a very nice event the previous Thursday. 
             Mayor White commented on how nice the new section of the Forest Park was and that he   
             enjoyed the celebration.  
 
IX.      Executive Sessions 
            A.    To Discuss Potential Economic Development Project 

B.   To Discuss Personnel Matters Relating to Compensation of Appointed Officials  
            Councilmember Dogan made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session for the reasons  
            stated. Mayor pro tem Ryba seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. Council  
            adjourned to Executive Session at 5:45 p.m. 
 
           Council reconvened to regular session at 6:53 p.m. 
           Mayor White stated that discussion was held on both items with no decisions made. 
 
X.       Adjournment 
           Mayor pro tem Ryba made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember Dogan  
           seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0 and the meeting adjourned at            
           6:55 p.m. 
 
 
             
             Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

 3  



 
 

VII. A  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  
 



     REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 
  
FROM:   Joshua T. Henderson, Planning Coordinator 
      
SUBJECT:  Ordinance Accepting the Property Owned by Kathy Brittain Wright, and Being 

Located at 675 Perrin Drive, and that Portion of Perrin Drive Abutting said Property, 
as a Part and Parcel of the City of Spartanburg and Declaring said Property Annexed 
to and a Part and Parcel of the City of Spartanburg, said Parcel to be Zoned R-15, 
Single Family Residential upon Annexation. 

 
DATE: June 18, 2012 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Staff received a request from Kathy Brittain Wright, owner of 675 Perrin Drive for annexation of the 
property into the City of Spartanburg.  Because the property will be zoned R-15, Single Family Residential 
upon Annexation, there is no need to obtain zoning designation by the Planning Commission. 
 
Additionally, said parcel is located in the Hillbrook Forest Subdivision.  However, since it is not contiguous 
to properties already annexed (Hillbrook Phase I, Phase II, and Phase III), but is contiguous to the City 
limits, the property owner has submitted an annexation petition under the 100 percent Petition and 
Ordinance method. 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:   
 
Staff recommends that the City Council take the following actions: 

a) Approve the annexation of 675 Perrin Drive (TMS7-10-09-067.00). 
b) Designate the zoning for this property as R-15 (Single Family Residential) upon annexation. 

 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:    
 
The parcel will generate property tax after annexation.  Additional service costs will be minimal. 



AN ORDINANCE 
 

ACCEPTING THE PROPERTY OWNED BY KATHY BRITTAIN WRIGHT, 
AND BEING LOCATED AT 675 PERRIN DRIVE AND THAT PORTION OF 
PERRIN DRIVE ABUTTING SAID PROPERTY, AND IS FURTHER 
IDENTIFIED ON SPARTANBURG COUNTY TAX MAP AS 7-10-09-067.00 
AS A PART AND PARCEL OF THE CITY OF SPARTANBURG AND 
DECLARING SAID PROPERTY ANNEXED TO AND A PART AND PARCEL 
OF THE CITY OF SPARTANBURG. 

 
 WHEREAS, heretofore, the City of Spartanburg, on May 31, 2012, received a Petition, 
filed by Kathy Brittain Wright, Owner, requesting that the property described in the Petition be 
annexed to the City of Spartanburg; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of Spartanburg has caused an investigation to be made of 
said property and has found that said property is contiguous to the City of Spartanburg and that it 
would be in the best interest of the City of Spartanburg if said property be annexed hereto in 
accordance with Section 5-3-150 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Members of Council of the City of 
Spartanburg, South Carolina, in Council assembled: 
 
 Section 1:  That the Petition of Kathy Brittain Wright, dated May 31, 2012, for the 
annexation of the property hereinafter described to the City of Spartanburg be accepted. 
 
 Section 2:  That the property hereinafter described is hereby declared annexed to the City 
of Spartanburg and a part and parcel of said City with full privileges accorded to and 
responsibilities required of said area. 
 
 Section 3:  That said property is described as follows: 
 
 All that certain lot or parcel of land located just east of the City of Spartanburg, State and 
County aforesaid, being known and designated as Lot No. 13 in Block 11 as shown on Plat for 
Kathy Brittain Wright and Billy M. Wright by John Robert Jennings, RLS, dated January 26, 
1996, and recorded January 31, 1996, in Plat Book 132 at page 394, Spartanburg County RMC 
Office.  Reference to said plat is made for a more particular description. 
 
 This property is conveyed subject to Restrictive Covenants recorded in Deed Book 33G at 
page 225 and all easements and rights of way of record, including those shown on the above plat. 
 
 This being the same property conveyed to Kathy Lynne Brittain by Deed of Kathy B. 
Prestipino recorded November 15, 1993 in Deed Book 60S at page 529 in the Spartanburg 
County RMC Office.  Kathy Lynne Brittain (now known as Kathy Brittain Wright) subsequently 
conveyed a one-half interest to Billy M. Wright by Deed recorded January 31, 1996, in Deed 
Book 63-U at page 502 in the Spartanburg County RMC Office. 
 
  The County Block Map Number of the above tract of land is 7-10-09-067.00.  (See 
attached plat) 
 



 Section 4:  That upon annexation, the property shall be zoned as Zone R-15 (Single Family 
Residential). 
 
 Section 5:  This Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption by the City Council of the 
City of Spartanburg, South Carolina. 
 
 DONE AND RATIFIED THIS ____ DAY OF __________________, 2012. 
 
 
 
         __________________________ 
                                                                                                Junie L. White, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
Cathy H. McCabe, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
__/__/__  (First Reading) 
 
__/__/__  (Second Reading) 
 























 
 

VIII. A  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  
 



s    REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 

TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager     
 
FROM: Marion Blackwell, Fire Chief   
      
SUBJECT: Approval to Donate One Fire Engine 
 
DATE: June 20, 2012 
   
 

BACKGROUND: The Fire Division is constantly evaluating our current resources to make sure we remain 
efficient in our duties and prudent in our financial management.  The Fire Division has a 1985 Ford Pierce 
Engine in our inventory that has not seen frontline use in over three years. This engine has been retained as 
back-up to the back-up engine.  The engine does not meet current NFPA Standard 1901 for use as a 
frontline engine and I have restricted its use as a non-emergency response vehicle only.  As such, the 
engine has no value to the Fire Division. Additionally, removing this fire engine from our fleet will reduce 
costs for equipment maintenance.  Five Division’s assessment is that if sold as surplus, this engine would 
result in minimal sales proceeds to the City.   The estimated value of the pumper is between $1372 and 
$3500 (current auction pricing of similar fire trucks on GovDeals.com 06/21/12).   
 
An alternative to selling the engine is to donate it to the Spartanburg County Emergency Services Academy 
(“SCESA”).  The SCESA provides training to all fire, EMS and law enforcement personnel in Spartanburg 
County.  City of Spartanburg personnel as well as other fire departments throughout the county have 
participated in Driver/Operator, pump test certification and Emergency Vehicle Operations training 
provided by SCESA. Because the SCESA does not have a fire engine in its inventory, each department 
sending personnel has been required to provide an engine during their training.   
 
A donation of the City’s engine would provide service to many departments, including the City of 
Spartanburg.  Staff believes that the enhanced efficiency gained by a donation of the engine exceeds what 
the City would realize from sale of the pumper.    
  
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  The Fire Division requests approval to donate one (1) 1985 Ford Pierce Fire 
Engine to Spartanburg County Emergency Services Academy. 
 
 
BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:  City would forgo an estimated $3000 from sale of the engine but 
would significantly improve training efficiency of all departments using the SCESA.    



A RESOLUTION 
 

TO APPROVE THE DONATION OF THE CITY OF 
SPARTANBURG’S PUBLIC SAFETY DEPARTMENT’S 
DEPRECIATED FIRE PUMPER TRUCK TO THE 
SPARTANBURG COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES 
ACADEMY. 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Spartanburg’s Public Safety Department (“City”) is interested in 

enhancing the training for its employees, particularly its firefighters; and 
 
WHEREAS, the firefighters are trained at the Spartanburg County Emergency Services 

Academy (“Academy”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Academy benefits from the donation of aged, depreciated equipment for 

the training of firefighters; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has a 1985 Ford Pierce Pumper VIN# 1FDYD80U9GVA06154, 

City vehicle# 231 (the “Property”) which it no longer needs to provide fire services, which 
Property has been fully depreciated, and wishes to donate the Property to the Academy. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED By the Mayor and Members of Council of the 

City of Spartanburg, in Council assembled: 
 

Section 1.  To approve the donation of the Property described herein. 
 
Section 2.  To authorize the City Attorney to draft an Agreement, Release, Indemnity and 

Hold Harmless effectuating the donation, similar to the document attached hereto, and to 
authorize any other procedures necessary to complete the transfer. 

 
Section 3.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its enactment. 
 
DONE AND RATIFIED this _________ day of ____________________, 2012. 

 
 
 
 

  ___________________________   
   Junie L. White, Mayor. 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk. 

  



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
     ) AGREEMENT, RELEASE, INDEMNITY 
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) AND HOLD HARMLESS 
 
   
 
 This Agreement and Release is entered into this _____ day of ___________________ 

between City of Spartanburg (“City”) and the Spartanburg County Emergency Services 

Academy (“Academy”). 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety Department’s Fire Division has property described in 

Exhibit A attached hereto (“Property”) that is fully depreciated and is no longer needed to 

provide fire service to the citizens of Spartanburg; and 

WHEREAS, Property could be used for training purposes at Academy, and Academy 

wishes to have the City transfer ownership of the Property to Academy. 

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENT, that in consideration of their 

mutual promises and other good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows: 

1. City transfers ownership of Property to Academy. 

2. Academy accepts full responsibility including liability and accepts Property “AS IS” 

understanding the limited use of Property for training purposes only. 

3. Academy agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City of Spartanburg, its Public 

Safety Department, officers, Council Members, employees and agents, their 

respective successors, heirs and assigns from any liability as it regards Property. 

4.  Academy further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City of Spartanburg, its 

Public Safety Department, officers, Council Members, employees and agents, their 

respective successors, heirs and assigns in the event there are any claims or actions, 

 1



5. Academy agrees to use Property only for training.  Property will not be sold or 

ownership transferred without specifying the limited use of Property. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto executed this Agreement the 

date and year first-above written. 

IN THE PRESENCE OF: 
      SOUTH CAROLINA FIRE ACADEMY 
 
______________________________        
(Witness)     By:_______________________________________ 
        
____________________________   Its: _______________________________________   
(Witness)      
 

 

     CITY OF SPARTANBURG             
______________________________        
(Witness)     By:_______________________________________ 
       Ed Memmott                
______________________________   Its: City Manager 
(Witness)      
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________  
Cathy McCabe, City Attorney 
 

 2



 3

EXHIBIT A 
 

 1985 Ford Pierce Fire Engine, VIN# 1FDYD80U9GVA06154 with a 1000 GPM 
Waterous pump and 750 gallon tank.  



 
 

IX. A  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  
 



       

   REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager  
 
FROM: Tim Carter, Engineering Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed West Main Street Project  
 
DATE:  June 18, 2012 
 
BACKGROUND: 
    

The City and many supporting organizations have been working to improve the pedestrian access, bike access, 
and the overall vitality of the downtown for several years.  The City now has an opportunity to expand this 
effort by making improvements to West Main Street.  This project would include urban streetscaping (wider 
sidewalks, pedestrian lighting, additional trees, and reduction of travel lanes) from the West Main Street/Daniel 
Morgan Avenue intersection to the CSX rail crossing. Additionally, West Main from St. John Street to the 
intersection with John B. White Boulevard would be resurfaced.  This section of West Main would be 
reconfigured to have two vehicular travel lanes, a center turn lane, and two bike lanes.    

Staff believes West Main Street serves as a major gateway to downtown and will encourage additional 
economic development.   

Project costs are estimated at $400,000.  Proposed funding includes $125,000 in County Transportation Funds, 
$135,000 County Road Fee Funds, and $140,000 in Broad Street Tax Increment District Funding (streetscape 
portion only).   

Staff would like to brief Council on this project and request authorization to proceed with bid solicitation.   Staff 
would return to Council to request approval of a construction contract.   

 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
Authorize staff to proceed with bid solicitation. .   
 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA: $400,000  
 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 
 

IX. B  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 



              REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
 
 
TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager  
 
FROM: Jay Squires, Storm Water Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Ribault Street Culvert Improvement 
 
DATE: June 20, 2012 
 
 
BACKGROUND    
 
Staff received bids for the Ribault Street Culvert Improvement Project on June 20, 2012.   This project consists 
of removal and replacement of approximately 74 feet of storm drainage pipe from under Ribault Street. 
 
The following bids were submitted:   
 
P.A.R. Grading and Hauling, Inc. (Spartanburg, S.C.)        $ 49,250 
Bishop Mays, Inc.  (Greer, S.C.)                                                          $ 53,813 
Raby Construction Co. Inc (Greenville, S.C.)                           $ 71,398 
Anders, Inc. (Easley, S.C.)                                              $ 71,700 
 
 
Staff has reviewed the bids received and the qualifications for each of these contractors and determined that 
P.A.R. Grading and Hauling, Inc. is the responsive low bidder.   No bids were submitted from MWBE certified 
contractors.  
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  
 
Allow staff to accept the bid from P.A.R. Grading and Hauling, Inc. and authorize the City Manager to enter 
into a contract with P.A.R. Grading and Hauling, Inc. for the completion of the project.  
 
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE DATA:  
 
$ 49,250 from the Storm Water Utility fund will be used to complete the project. 
.     
 

 
 
 




